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In 2003, we added 37,000 square feet.
Manufacturing, quality control and training
facilities. A surgical skills laboratory. Video
teleconferencing center. Even an employee
gym. But this is not a story about a building.  

It’s a story about what we’re building...
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This report contains various “forward looking statements” within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended,

and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, which represent the Company's expectations or beliefs concerning

future events, including, but not limited to, statements regarding growth in sales of the Company’s products, profit margins and the 

sufficiency of the Company's cash flow for its future liquidity and capital resource needs.  These forward looking statements are further

qualified by important factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from those in the forward looking statements.  These 

factors include, without limitation, the effect of competitive pricing, the Company’s dependence on the ability of its third-party suppliers

to produce components on a cost-effective basis to the Company, market acceptance of the Company's products, the outcome of 

litigation, and the effects of governmental regulation.  Results actually achieved may differ materially from expected results included in

these statements as a result of these or other factors, including those factors discussed in “Risk Factors” in Item 7 of the Company’s Annual

Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2003, as filed with the United States Securities and Exchange Commission.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT RELATING TO FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS

Exactech develops and markets orthopaedic

implant devices, related surgical instruments, and

biologic materials to hospitals and physicians. The

company manufactures orthopaedic devices at its

Gainesville facility. Exactech’s orthopaedic products

are used to repair damaged bones and joints that

have deteriorated as a result of injury or diseases

such as arthritis.
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ERGY
Working together. Forming relationships.
Collaborating to reach higher, farther, faster
than before. 

That’s synergy—a formula where the result is
greater than the sum of the parts. It’s a place
where Exactech is building the future.

Exactech exists to improve the quality of life for individuals by 
helping to maintain their activity and independence. We do this
through innovative ideas, high quality products, education and 
commitment to service.

During 2003, Exactech furthered this purpose by building synergy
with our surgeon customers, with our sales representatives, and
among employees. We expanded our headquarters building to provide
new internal manufacturing capabilities, an enlarged quality control
area and state-of-the-art education and training facilities.

We’re building infrastructure. Building connections. Building a
brand. And building momentum to fulfill our vision of being the
world’s leading provider of bone and joint restoration products that
improve patient outcomes.  
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Dear Shareholder:

The year 2003 was a year of important progress
and growth for Exactech as our Optetrak® knee
products gained further market share and we made
valuable headway in our tissue services activities. We
benefited from excellent international sales and
realized important operational improvements resulting
in enhanced gross margins. We expanded our head-
quarters building in Gainesville to provide us with
new internal manufacturing capabilities, an enlarged
quality control area and state-of-the art educational
and training facilities for our sales representatives and
the surgeons who use our products. 

Following our two-for-one stock split, we gained
additional attention in the financial community with
our inclusion in the Russell 2000 Index.

Our continuing strong financial results are a direct
result of the quality of our products, our traditional
emphasis on research and development, and our ability
to produce and market innovative products that
provide what surgeons need to successfully enhance
the lives of their patients. We have earned the respect
and support of surgeons because of our commitment
to improving surgical outcomes. This in turn enables
our sales representatives to build strong relationships
with our direct customers—surgeons and hospitals.

Revenue for fiscal year 2003 increased 20% to
$71.3 million from $59.3 million in 2002.  Net
income for the year grew 22% to $6.5 million, or
$.57 per diluted share, from $5.3 million, or $.48 per
diluted share, in 2002. 

Global sales from our knee product lines were up
23% to $41.3 million. Sales of hip products rose 4% to
$14.9 billion. The hip results were disappointing, but
we believe we’ll see improvement in the second half of
2004 through growth of existing hip products, which
will be supplemented by the introduction of our new
line of reduced trauma instruments for minimally
invasive surgery, and a new press fit primary hip system.

Revenue from tissue services for the year rose 34%
in 2003 to $9.7 million. International sales rose 37%
to $12.9 million from $9.4 million in 2002. These
sales represented 18% of total sales in 2003 compared
with 16% of total sales the previous year.

Our strong balance sheet allowed us to make several
strategic investments, extending our capabilities into
total shoulder systems and providing entry for us into
the growing spinal products market through our invest-
ment in Altiva Corporation. 

We stepped up our research and development
activities, further strengthening our development
pipeline of new products and technologies. This
includes new hip systems and polycrystalline diamond
compact technology for total hip implants that will be
important to our future success. We are focused on our
goal of becoming a major force in quickly evolving and

Letter to Shareholders

2003 2002 2001

Sales $71,255 $59,302 $46,599 
Gross profit 48,162 39,724 30,333 
Net income 6,501 5,321 3,460 

Basic EPS $ 0.59 $ 0.49 $ 0.33 
Diluted EPS 0.57 0.48 0.32 

Financial Position 
(as of Dec 31)
Assets $70,338 $56,766 $47,478 
Net property 
and equipment 22,401 17,850 14,786 
Shareholders’ equity 51,307 44,026 37,380 

Financial Highlights*

* Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts2



highly promising orthobiologic therapies that offer
improved treatment outcomes for many bone and joint
diseases. We are making excellent progress in that area.

In 2004 we expect to benefit from the roll out 
of new products including the addition of an asym-
metrical knee to our Optetrak® product line, continuing
operational improvements and further strengthening
of the quality and size of our sales force. 

Industry analysts have pegged the global medical
device market at $16 billion and are forecasting a 
sustainable U. S. revenue growth in medical devices in
the range of 10% to 15% with even higher growth
rates in many countries abroad. We are already active
in many of those markets. Frost and Sullivan, a
leading healthcare consulting firm, predicts the future
focus in health care will shift from acute conditions
and infection to “restorative or implantable devices
that allow patients with chronic conditions to regain
more of their original health.”  This is exactly what
Exactech does.

Our progress, both in terms of actual growth and
market share, is possible in this environment because
of the extraordinarily talented and dedicated people
who are building Exactech. This goes well beyond the
37,000 sq. ft. expansion of our Gainesville headquar-
ters in 2003. It is also about building a brand,
building connections in the global orthopaedic
community and building the increasingly obvious
momentum toward fulfilling our vision of becoming
the world’s leading producer of bone and joint
restoration products that provide improved patient
outcomes. These are good times for Exactech, its
people and its shareholders and we will strive to make
the future even better.

Bill Petty, M.D.
Chairman, Chief Executive Officer 
and President
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BUILDING INFRASTRUCTURE
The Synergy of Support



BUILDING INFRASTRUCTURE
The Synergy of Support

Exactech’s commitment to building
infrastructure is critical to the 
successful product development
necessary to meet and exceed our
company’s long-term goals.

In 2003, Exactech invested in key assets—people
and properties—to maximize operational effec-
tiveness, enhance quality and support a robust
product pipeline.  The 37,000 square foot expan-
sion of Exactech’s facility provides for up to 65%
growth in manufacturing capacity.

Additional hip and knee products are now produced
in-house, lowering manufacturing costs and reduc-
ing lead times and inventory.  A second shift
began late in the year and the acquisition of tech-
nologically-advanced laser vision inspection equip-
ment enhanced assurance of product quality.  

Exactech’s commitment to product development
and “hiring the best” led to a 27% increase in engi-
neering staff.  Recognizing the criticality of a strong

product pipeline, this team introduced four new
products in 2003 while gearing-up to double that
number in 2004. 

When presented the challenge to design a new
implant component that would address 93% of the
total knee market, the engineering team reacted
with renewed energy, a heightened sense of
urgency and a great deal of flexibility.  With this
synergy, they delivered the Optetrak® knee 
system’s asymmetrical femoral component nine
months ahead of plan. 

2003 Highlights:
• Facility expansion provides for 65% growth in 

manufacturing capacity
• Second shift production prepares for new 

product launches and sales growth
• Engineering staff grows by 27%
• Engineering team delivers four new products; 

doubles the commitment for 2004
• Optetrak® knee system adds asymmetrical 

femoral component to address 93% of total 
knee market

(         )27% increase in engineering staff  
+ 65% manufacturing capacity expansion

= Four new products in 2003; Eight forecast for release 
in 2004; Optetrak Asymmetrical femoral component
(pictured left) delivered NINE MONTHS ahead of schedule.
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Connecting with surgeons and
understanding their needs is funda-
mental to Exactech’s culture and
strategy for success. By fostering
idea exchange and hands-on 
experience, Exactech is building
strong relationships with end users
and fueling continued sales growth.

In collaboration with the Hospital for Special
Surgery in New York, Exactech sponsored a CME
(Continuing Medical Education) accredited confer-
ence that attracted world renowned faculty and
more than 100 surgeon participants.  The
program’s academic quality and the clinical results
shared by presenters substantiated Exactech’s

commitment to innovation, excellence and
improved patient outcomes.  At corporate head-
quarters, a new video-teleconferencing facility and
250-person auditorium enable the company to
present surgical solutions to a variety of
customers and distributors.  A state-of-the-art
surgical skills laboratory provides visitors hands-on
experience with Exactech products.

2003 Highlights:
• Exactech-sponsored surgeon educational 

program increases sales & customer confidence
• New video-teleconferencing equipment, training 

center and surgical skills laboratory provide 
support to new customers and sales 
representatives

BUILDING CONNECTIONS
The Synergy of Relationships

(    )Commitment to education  
+ Idea exchange
x Hands-on experience

= Continued sales growth
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To provide for the entire continuum
of care, we continue to build the
Exactech brand by offering products
that not only work well, but work well
together to improve patient
outcomes.  

Unicompartmental knee implants are a rapidly
growing segment of the knee arthroplasty market.
Exactech continued to leverage its U.S. distribution
of Link® orthopaedic products with introduction of
an instrument system for the Link® unicompart-
mental knee prosthesis. The new instruments are
designed for a reduced incision surgical technique.
The implant’s results were documented in the
respected 2002 Swedish Knee Arthroplasty
Register as the top performing unicompartmental
knee prosthesis in terms of long-term clinical
outcomes.

Introduction of a room temperature version of
Opteform® allograft made this proven biologic
material even more appealing.  A perfect
companion to Exactech’s revision implants, such as

the Link® partial pelvis or AcuMatch® and Link®

modular hip stems, Opteform® RT empowers the
Exactech sales team to support even the toughest
surgical situations. Expansions to the Optetrak®

knee system and AcuMatch® hip systems
broadened the scope of applications, increasing
sales for these important product lines.  

Throughout the year, we continued developing our
brand promise to make every day “A Great Day in
the O.R.”SM A dramatic new tradeshow exhibit,
corporate brochure and advertising campaign
amplified this commitment, expanding Exactech’s
presence and image.

2003 Highlights:
• Link® unicompartmental knee and instrument 

system provide for reduced incision technique
• Opteform® room temperature allograft adds 

convenience and strengthens vertical selling 
opportunities

• Line extensions broaden Optetrak® knee 
and AcuMatch® hip systems

• New 50 x 50 ft. tradeshow exhibit broadcasts 
Exactech’s brand promise: A Great Day in the O.R.SM

BUILDING OUR BRAND
The Synergy of Scope

(         )Link® uni knee with reduced incision technique
+ Opteform® Room Temperature bone graft
+ Optetrak® Knee & AcuMatch® Hip line extensions

= Broader scope of products; A Great Day in the O.R.SM
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With a strong foundation, clear vision
and effective resource management,
Exactech is growing market share
while improving patient outcomes.

An exciting new partnership was finalized early in
the year, positioning Exactech to address the goal
of creating a hip implant that lasts a lifetime.  An
agreement with Diamicron Corporation gives
Exactech worldwide rights to develop and market
diamond technology for total hip implants. In pre-
liminary hip simulator testing, Diamicron’s poly-
crystalline diamond compact (PDC) technology has
proven highly effective, offering the promise of
mechanical and wear characteristics that surpass
currently available technology.  

Collaboration with surgeon design teams filled
Exactech’s product pipeline with new primary hip
systems and a new unicompartmental knee
system for reduced incision surgical techniques.   

Development work also advanced the company’s
plans to introduce treatments for spinal and
shoulder reconstruction in 2004 and 2005.

With distribution in seven new markets, 
international sales grew 37%, representing 18%
of total revenue in 2003. Strengthened relation-
ships with domestic and international distribution
teams continue to build a strong foundation for
increasing global sales in the years to come.

2004 Outlook:
• Diamicron agreement and new primary hip 

system positions Exactech for leadership in 
alternative hip bearing surfaces

• Exactech’s unicompartmental knee to 
complement existing Link® design

• Reduced incision surgical instrumentation 
to meet growing patient interest

• New products enable entry into shoulder markets

BUILDING MOMENTUM

(         )Partnerships for Technology Development
+ Collaboration with Surgeon Experts
x Strengthened Domestic and International Distribution

= Increased global sales; Growing market share

The Synergy Driving Our Future
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Business Overview 
 
OVERVIEW OF THE COMPANY 
 
 Exactech develops, manufactures, markets, distributes and sells orthopaedic implant devices and related 
surgical instrumentation, and distributes biologic materials to hospitals and physicians in the United States and 
internationally.  The Company was founded by an orthopaedic surgeon in November 1985, and is incorporated under 
the laws of the State of Florida.  The Company’s revenues are principally derived from sales and distribution of its 
joint replacement systems, including knee and hip implant systems, and distribution of biologic allograft materials. 
 
 The Company manufactures some components of its knee and hip joint replacement systems at its facility in 
Gainesville, Florida utilizing state of the art computer aided manufacturing equipment.  Internal manufacturing is 
complimented by externally manufactured components through the formation of strategic alliances with suppliers and 
business partners.  Other products and services are acquired and distributed through exclusive agreements, such as 
the Company’s agreements with Regeneration Technologies, Inc. (“RTI”), Link America, Inc. and its parent company, 
Waldemar Link GmbH & Co. (“Link”), and Tecres, S.p.A (“Tecres”). 
 
Products 
 
 The Company's joint replacement implant products are used by orthopaedic surgeons to repair or replace 
joints that have deteriorated as a result of injury or disease.  Reconstructive joint surgery involves the modification of 
the area surrounding the affected joint and the insertion of a set of manufactured implant components to replace or 
augment the joint.  When indicated, the surgeon uses biologic allograft materials, like those distributed by Exactech, 
to repair bone defects and provide an interface to stimulate new bone growth.  In many joint replacement procedures, 
bone cement is used to affix implant components to the prepared bone surfaces. 
 
 Knee Implants.  The Company believes that its Optetrak® knee system represents a major advance in knee 
implant design.  The Optetrak® knee system is a modular system designed to improve patellar tracking (the 
movement of the knee cap), reduce articular contact stress (the force between surfaces in a joint) that leads to 
implant failure, and provide a functional range of motion.  Laboratory testing performed by the Company and clinical 
testing performed by the Company's design team members has demonstrated that the system produces substantially 
lower articular contact stress and improved patellar tracking compared to other knee implant systems. 
 
 The Optetrak® system includes a total primary knee replacement system which is available with either a 
cruciate ligament sparing femoral component (in both cemented and porous coated designs and used in situations 
where the surgeon chooses to maintain certain ligaments) or a posterior stabilized femoral component (in both 
cemented and porous coated designs and used in situations where the surgeon chooses to eliminate certain 
ligaments).  The Optetrak® system also includes a constrained total knee system for revision surgery and primary 
surgery with severe deformities.  The constrained version includes two types of femoral components:  the constrained 
condylar modular femoral component and a constrained non-modular femoral component.  The modular component 
includes stem and block augmentation to aid in repairing damaged or weakened bone.  The constrained condylar 
femoral component was designed to provide greater constraint between the tibial and femoral components of the 
system to compensate for ligaments weakened or lost due to disease or as a result of failure of previous treatments.  
During 2004, the Company intends to commence full-scale marketing of an asymmetrical femoral component product 
line extension to the Optetrak system.  This line extension includes a cruciate sparing, posterior stabilized and a new 
high flexion line.  These asymmetrical line extensions will provide for differentiated right and left femoral components 
that the Company hopes will be successful in meeting surgeon preferences. 
 
 In March 2002, the Company commenced distributing Link’s line of implant products which includes the 
LinkEndo-ModelTM Rotational Knee, designed to provide stability with controlled rotation for severe joint deterioration 
with insufficient ligament support, and the Link Endo-ModelTM Sled Uni-Knee, designed for cases where only a 
portion of a joint warrants replacement.   
 
 Hip Implants.  The Company's line of hip implant and instrument products includes the AcuMatch® 
Integrated Hip System which is designed to address the vast majority of indications for total hip replacement, 
including primary and revision needs.  The system includes the C-Series cemented femoral stem, the A-Series 
acetabular components (for the hip socket), the P-Series press-fit femoral stem, the M-Series modular femoral stem, 
the L-Series femoral stem system, bipolar and unipolar partial hip replacement components, a variety of femoral 
heads and a cemented acetabular component.  The AcuMatch cemented revision components include revision long 
stems and calcar replacement stems that were originally part of the Company’s AuRA Revision Hip System.  The 
Company continues to market its Opteon® Cemented Stem System, a moderate demand femoral stem system.   
 
 The Company’s AcuMatch C-Series Cemented Femoral Stem is a forged cobalt chromium stem designed 
to improve stability and reduce dislocation complications by improving the head/neck ratio and restoring anatomic 
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offset for patients requiring cemented total hip arthroplasty (joint reconstructive surgery).  The AcuMatch A-Series 
was designed to provide a comprehensive acetabular offering with maximum polyethylene thickness to help in 
reducing polyethylene wear debris.  The M-Series modular femoral stem offers components that are 100% 
interchangeable, allowing the surgeon to customize the prosthesis at the time of surgery and according to the 
patient’s bony structures.  This versatility and the manner in which the components mate can have a positive effect on 
patient outcomes.  The AcuMatch P-Series Press Fit Femoral Stem System has multiple coating options for fixation 
to bone and features a scientifically sound solution to stiffness mismatch and rotational instability in the bone, 
potential underlying causes of post-operative residual thigh pain.  The AcuMatch L-Series hip system features both 
cemented and press fit femoral components, as well as unipolar and bipolar endoprostheses, often used for the 
treatment of hip fractures. 
 
 The Link hip implant product lines distributed by the Company include the MPTM Modular Femoral Revision 
stem, offering surgeons a product specifically designed and indicated for situations where there is deficient proximal 
bone.  This unique design offers enhanced stability and fatigue strength over and above competitive stems indicated 
for similar clinical situations.  Also distributed by the Company is the Link® Saddle Prosthesis, a salvage type 
prosthesis designed to support the pelvic region when the acetabulum cannot be reconstructed, the Link SPII® hip 
stem, and the Link® Partial Pelvis. 
 
 The Company’s product pipeline includes several new hip systems which the Company feels will make its hip 
offerings more competitive, including the Nōvus™ System, featuring press-fit and cemented primary femoral stems, 
press-fit revision stems, and a comprehensive acetabular system which will incorporate the use of alternative bearing 
couples such as ceramic and diamond.  Instrumentation to address reduced incision lengths are also planned for 
launch during 2004. 
   
 Tissue Services.  The Company is the exclusive, worldwide distributor of bone paste products processed by 
RTI for use in non-spinal musculoskeletal orthopaedic procedures.  These unique allograft materials are distributed as 
Opteform® and Optefil® and are clinically proven for effectively repairing bone and filling bone defects.  During 2002, 
the Company obtained the distribution rights to Optefil® as part of the settlement of its arbitration with RTI.  During 
2003, the Company continued to expand the breadth of its allograft materials line in cooperation with RTI by releasing 
the Optefil® RT line and intends to release an Opteform® RT line during early 2004.   These RT (Room Temperature) 
lines are allograft products that are distributed in a non-frozen form.  As an addendum to the RTI distribution 
agreement, the Company also initiated distribution of Regenaform® and Regenafil® product lines during July 2003 for 
usage in oral and dental applications.   
 
 Other Products.  The AcuDriver Automated Osteotome System is an air-driven impact hand piece that 
aids surgeons during joint implant revision procedures by providing effective removal of failed prostheses and bone 
cement.  The AcuDriver accomplishes this by providing the surgeon with precise positioning without the 
inconvenience and inconsistency of striking the osteotome with a mallet. 
 
 The Link S.T.A.R.TM ankle is distributed under terms of a Food and Drug Administration (“FDA”) approved 
Investigational Device Exemption (“IDE”).  If this product is found to be safe and effective, it should provide an 
alternative to fusion that will maintain motion and pain relief in arthritic patients with the appropriate indications.  The 
Company also distributes Link surgical instrumentation that can be used in various orthopaedic procedures including 
shoulder, knee, spine, foot, ankle and hip arthroplasty.  
 
 The Cemex bone cement system features a unique self-contained delivery system that has been clinically 
proven in Europe for more than a decade.  By integrating bone cement powder and liquid into a sealed mixing 
system, Cemex is designed to offer surgeons and operating room personnel simplicity, safety and reliability in bone 
cement.  The Company distributes Cemex in the United States under an exclusive distribution agreement with the 
Italian manufacturer, Tecres S.p.A..  In January 2004, the Company announced that Tecres had received clearance 
from the FDA to market a pre-formed cement hip spacer product containing an antibiotic that is included in the 
Company’s distribution agreement. The spacer is used in two stage revision total hip procedures involving an infection 
with a previously implanted total hip and provides orthopaedic surgeons with a new, convenient way to treat this 
difficult problem.  The Company expects to begin marketing the spacer in the second quarter of 2004. 
 
 Late in 2002, the Company acquired rights to a patented total shoulder system from Teknimed, a French 
manufacturer of orthopaedic implants and processor of biological products.  Teknimed will continue to manufacture 
and distribute the shoulder system in Europe for the Company while Exactech establishes appropriate manufacturing 
support, upgrades the design and pursues marketing clearance from the FDA for distribution in the United States. 
 
Marketing and Sales 
 
 The Company markets its orthopaedic implant products in the United States through fifty-five independent 
sales agencies and one domestic distributor.  These agencies, along with their independently contracted personnel, 
serve as the Company's sales representatives.  Internationally, the Company markets its products through twenty-two 
distributors that currently distribute products in twenty-five countries.  The customers for the Company's products are 
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hospitals, surgeons and other physicians and clinics.   
 
 The Company generally has contractual arrangements with its independent sales agencies whereby the 
agency is granted the exclusive right to sell the Company's products in the specified territory. In turn, the agency is 
required to meet sales quotas to maintain its relationship with the Company.  The Company typically pays its sales 
agencies a commission based on net sales.  The Company is highly dependent on the expertise and relationships of 
its sales agencies with customers.  The Company's sales organization is managed by five Regional Directors of Sales 
(East, Central, Midwest, Southeast and West).  The Company has a contractual arrangement with its domestic 
distributor that is similar to its arrangements with its sales agencies, except the Company does not pay the distributor 
commissions and the distributor purchases inventory from the Company for use in fulfilling customer orders.  The 
Company currently offers its products in all fifty states, and the District of Columbia. 
 
 The Company provides inventories of its products to its United States sales agencies until sold or returned.  
These inventories are necessary for sales agents to market the Company’s products and fill customer orders.  The 
size of the component to be used for a specific patient is typically not known with certainty until the time of surgery. 
Due to this uncertainty, a minimum of one of each size of each component in the system to be used must be available 
to each sales agency at the time of surgery.  Accordingly, the Company is required to maintain substantial levels of 
inventory.  The maintenance of relatively high levels of inventory requires the Company to incur significant 
expenditures of its resources.  The failure by the Company to maintain required levels of inventory could have a 
material adverse effect on the Company’s expansion.  As a result of the need to maintain substantial levels of 
inventory, the Company is subject to the risk of inventory obsolescence.  In the event that a substantial portion of the 
Company’s inventory becomes obsolete, it would have a material adverse effect on the Company.  The Company 
reviews its inventory for obsolescence on a regular basis and adjusts its inventory for impairment. 
 
 During 2003, 2002 and 2001, approximately 3%, 4% and 4%, respectively, of the Company's sales were 
derived from a major hospital customer.  During 2003, 2002, and 2001, one international distributor accounted for 
approximately 8%, 8% and 9%, respectively, of the Company's sales. 
 
 The Company generally has contractual arrangements with its international distributors pursuant to which the 
distributor is granted the exclusive right to market the Company's products in the specified territory and the distributor 
is required to meet sales quotas to maintain its relationship with the Company.  International distributors typically 
purchase product inventory and instruments from the Company for their use in marketing and filling customer orders. 
 
 For the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, international sales accounted for $12,895,000, 
$9,441,000, and $8,391,000, respectively, representing approximately 18%, 16% and 18%, respectively, of the 
Company’s sales.  Of those international sales, sales to the Company’s Spanish distributor accounted for $5,628,000, 
$4,838,000, and $4,260,000 in 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.  The Company intends to continue to expand its 
sales in international markets in which there is increasing demand for orthopaedic implant products. 
 
MARKET INFORMATION 
 
 The Company’s Common Stock trades on the Nasdaq National Market under the symbol “EXAC”. The 
following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the high and low sales price of the Common Stock, as reported on 
the Nasdaq National Market.  The share prices have been adjusted to reflect the two-for-one split of the Company’s 
Common Stock that was effective February 28, 2003: 

 
  
 
 As of March 8, 2004, the Company had approximately 225 shareholders of record.  There are in excess of 
2,550 beneficial owners of the Company’s Common Stock. 
 

2004 High Low
First Quarter (through March 8th) $ 18.76 $ 14.61 

2003
First Quarter $ 12.47 $ 10.39 
Second Quarter 16.30 12.09 
Third Quarter 18.78 13.50 
Fourth Quarter 17.55 14.08 

2002
First Quarter $ 9.25   $ 7.45   
Second Quarter 9.88   7.50   
Third Quarter 9.18   6.63   
Fourth Quarter 11.79 8.75   

No cash dividends have been paid to date by 
the Company on its Common Stock.  The 
Company intends to retain all future earnings for 
the operation and expansion of its business and 
does not anticipate the payment of cash 
dividends in the foreseeable future.  Any future 
determination as to the payment of cash 
dividends will depend upon a number of factors, 
including future earnings, results of operations, 
capital requirements, the Company’s financial 
condition and any restrictions under credit 
agreements existing from time to time, as well 
as such other factors as the Board of Directors 
may deem relevant. 
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Financial Overview 
 
SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA 
 
  The selected financial data set forth below has been derived from the audited financial statements of the 
Company.  This data should be read in conjunction with the financial statements, the notes thereto and 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations included elsewhere herein.   
 

 

2003 2002 2001 2000 1999
Statement of Income Data:
(in thousands, except per share amounts)
Net sales 71,255$  59,302$  46,599$  41,925$  32,954$   
Cost of goods sold 23,093     19,578     16,266     14,629     11,714     
Gross profit 48,162     39,724     30,333     27,296     21,240     
Operating expenses:

Sales and marketing 21,600     17,616     12,977     11,230     8,446       
General and administrative 7,496       6,119       4,765       3,168       2,665       
Research and development 3,748       2,803       2,210       2,138       1,621       
Depreciation and amortization 3,516       2,954       2,650       2,154       1,680       
Royalties 2,282       1,963       1,762       1,643       1,508       

Total operating expenses 38,642     31,455     24,364     20,333     15,920     
Income from operations 9,520       8,269       5,969       6,963       5,320       
Other income (expense):

Interest expense, net (160)         (149)         (391)         (288)         (137)         
Litigation settlement, net of costs 1,000       438          -               -               -               
Foreign currency exchange loss (92)           (59)           -               -               -               
Equity in net loss of other

investments (62)           (10)           (131)         -               -               
Income before provision for

income taxes 10,206     8,489       5,447       6,675       5,183       
Provision for income taxes 3,705     3,168     1,987     2,495     2,016       
Net income 6,501     5,321     3,460     4,180     3,167       
Basic earnings per common share $0.59 $0.49 $0.33 $0.41 $0.32
Diluted earnings per common share $0.57 $0.48 $0.32 $0.39 $0.31

Balance Sheet Data: 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999
(in thousands)
Total current assets 43,364$   37,489$   31,666$   29,473$   21,447$   
Total assets 70,338     56,766     47,478     44,549     34,609     
Total current liabilities 9,742       6,545       5,330       8,193       3,595       
Total long-term debt, net of current portion 6,499       4,313       3,000       3,300       3,600       
Total liabilities 19,031     12,740     10,098     12,913     8,169       
Total shareholders' equity 51,307     44,026     37,380     31,636     26,440     

Year Ended December 31, 
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND 
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 

 
The following discussion should be read in conjunction with the financial statements and related notes appearing 

elsewhere herein.  
  
 The Company develops, manufactures, markets and sells orthopaedic implant devices, related surgical 
instrumentation and supplies, as well as distributes services for biologic materials to hospitals and physicians in the 
United States and internationally.  The Company's revenues are primarily derived from sales of its knee and hip joint 
replacement systems; however, revenues from worldwide distribution of bone paste products processed for use in 
non-spinal musculoskeletal orthopaedic procedures has steadily increased as a percentage of the Company’s total 
revenues.  This increase is likely to continue as the Company expands its current distribution from the introduction of 
new, advanced biologic materials and services.  Revenue from sales of other products, including surgical 
instrumentation, Cemex bone cement, the recently FDA approved InterSpace pre-formed cement hip spacer and 
the Link S.T.A.R.TM ankle are expected to contribute to the Company’s anticipated revenue growth.   
 

 The Company’s operating expenses consist of sales and marketing expenses, general and administrative 
expenses, research and development expenses, depreciation expenses and royalty expenses.  The largest 
component of operating expenses, sales and marketing expenses, primarily consists of payments made to 
independent sales representatives for their services to hospitals and surgeons on the Company’s behalf.  As a result 
of the nature of these sales and marketing expenses, these expenses tend to be variable in nature and related to 
sales growth. Research and development expenses primarily consist of expenditures on projects concerning active 
knee and hip implant product lines and biologic services.  Royalty expenses consist primarily of expenditures made to 
the owners of patents and contributing surgeons who have licensed the use of their inventions or contributed their 
professional expertise to the Company for its product development and manufacturing uses.  Knee implant products 
generally carry a higher royalty charge than other implant products.  

 
In marketing its products, the Company uses a combination of traditional targeted media marketing and its 

primary marketing focus, direct customer contact and service to orthopaedic surgeons. Since surgeons are the 
primary decision maker when it comes to the choice of products and services that best meet the needs of their 
patients, the Company’s marketing strategy is focused on developing relationships and meeting the needs of the 
surgeon community in the orthopaedic industry.  In cooperation with its organization of independent sales agencies in 
the United States and network of independent distributors internationally, the Company conducts this effort through 
continuing education forums, training programs and product development advisory panels. 
 

In 2003, the Company augmented its growth strategy to supplement organic growth with an acquisition 
program.  The Company continuously evaluates opportunities to improve its product lines and capabilities through a 
combination of product technology and asset acquisitions.  As an initial implementation of this strategy, on October 
30, 2003, for an investment of $1 million, the Company acquired a 16.7% minority interest in Altiva Corporation 
(“Altiva”), an early stage company which is building an asset portfolio through the acquisition of existing spinal 
products and systems as well as acquiring broad distribution rights to other existing spinal market technologies. As 
part of the agreement under which the Company purchased this minority interest, the Company has committed to 
make loans available to Altiva in an amount of up to $5 million for a period of five years as well as provide Altiva with, 
or guarantee on behalf of Altiva, a working capital credit line in an amount up to $6 million. The Company also entered 
into a stockholders agreement with Altiva and some stockholders of Altiva under the terms of which the Company was 
granted an option to purchase all of Altiva’s outstanding securities for a specified purchase price. 

 
 In 2002, the Company entered into a distribution agreement with Link, a German manufacturer of joint 
replacement systems, to distribute Link’s orthopaedic products in the United States.  Link implants are complimentary 
to the Company’s total joint systems by addressing clinical indications outside the scope of the Company’s existing 
product designs. 
 
Results of Operations 
  
 The year 2003 was a year of progress and growth for the Company.  Total revenue increased 20% from 
2002.  Gross profit margin, aided by expanded internal manufacturing capabilities which could be conducted at lower 
costs, increased to 67.6% in 2003 from 67.0% during 2002.  Increases in operating expenses were driven by research 
and development expenditures, which increased 34% from 2002, as the Company continued to move new product 
development projects forward.  Overall, operating expenses increased 23% from 2002, relatively on pace with sales 
growth.  Income from operations posted solid growth, up 15% from 2002.  In 2003, the Company recognized the final 
payments due under a settlement agreement with Regeneration Technologies, Inc. (“RTI”), contributing to other 
income equaling 1% of total net sales.  Net income increased 22% from the prior year, equaling the same 9% of net 
sales achieved in 2002. 
 
 The balance sheet at the end of 2003 remained strong, enabling the Company to make several strategic 
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investments in product line technologies, including a total shoulder system and entry into the spinal products market 
through its minority investment in Altiva Corporation.  Working capital increased 9% to $33.6 million, and return on 
average shareholders’ equity increased to 13.6% in 2003, up from 13.1% in 2002.  The Company’s operations 
continued to produce positive cash flow in 2003 of $8.4 million, down slightly from $8.6 million in the prior year, 
enabling the Company to invest in inventory for product line and distribution expansion.   
 
 The following table includes the net revenue and percentage of net sales for each of the Company’s product 
lines for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001: 

  
 The following table includes: (i) items from the Statements of Income for the year ended December 31, 2003 
as compared to 2002, the dollar and percentage change from year to year and the percentage relationship to net 
sales and (ii) items from the Statements of Income for the year ended December 31, 2002 as compared to 2001, the 
dollar and percentage change from year to year and the percentage relationship to net sales (dollars in thousands): 
  

Net Sales Revenue 
 

The increase in net sales revenue of 20% in 2003 from 2002 was primarily driven by strong growth in the 
Company’s knee implant product lines, both in the United States and internationally.  During 2003, sales of knee 
implant products increased 23% in both the domestic and international markets.  In the United States, the Company 
benefited from increased market share with its Optetrak comprehensive knee system, coupled with increases in 
average selling prices in the range of 4% to 6%.  Internationally, the Company expanded its distribution in existing 
markets as well as entered new markets with the addition of several new distributors in Europe, the Middle East and 
Asia. While the overall increase in 2003 sales of hip implant products of 4% was disappointing, international sales of 
this product line grew 67% from 2002, as existing and new distributors expanded their product offering with the 
Company’s AcuMatch® integrated hip systems.  In the United States, sales of hip implants decreased 2% in 2003 
from 2002, primarily due to the Company’s lack of an alternative acetabular bearing surface, like the ceramic to 
ceramic and metal to metal components that are gaining prominence in the industry.  Looking forward, sales of hip 
implant products are anticipated to return to positive growth rates upon the release of a new press fit hip system 
currently scheduled for release in the second half of 2004.  The increase in tissue services revenue of 34% in 2003 
from 2002 resulted from expansion of the distribution channels along with expansion of the tissue service line to 
include Optefil® bone paste.  Sales revenue from other product lines increased 29% during 2003 as compared to 
2002, primarily from increased sales of surgical instruments to new international distributors, along with a 41% 
increase in sales of Cemex bone cement as the Company achieved better market penetration in new and existing 
accounts. 

2003 2002 2001 $ % $ % 2003 2002 2001
Net sales 71,255   59,302   46,599   11,953  20.2% 12,703   27.3% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
Cost of goods sold 23,093   19,578   16,266   3,515    18.0% 3,312     20.4% 32.4% 33.0% 34.9%

Gross profit 48,162   39,724   30,333   8,438    21.2% 9,391     31.0% 67.6% 67.0% 65.1%

Operating expenses:
Sales and marketing 21,600   17,616   12,977   3,984    22.6% 4,639     35.7% 30.3% 29.7% 27.8%
General and administrative 7,496     6,119     4,765     1,377    22.5% 1,354     28.4% 10.5% 10.3% 10.2%
Research and development 3,748     2,803     2,210     945       33.7% 593        26.8% 5.3% 4.7% 4.7%
Depreciation and amortization 3,516     2,954     2,650     562       19.0% 304        11.5% 4.9% 5.0% 5.7%
Royalties 2,282     1,963     1,762     319       16.3% 201        11.4% 3.2% 3.3% 3.8%
   Total operating expenses 38,642   31,455   24,364   7,187    22.8% 7,091     29.1% 54.2% 53.0% 52.3%

Income from operations 9,520     8,269     5,969     1,251    15.1% 2,300     38.5% 13.4% 13.9% 12.8%
Other income (expenses), net 686        220        (522)       466       211.8% 742        -142.1% 1.0% 0.4% -1.1%

Income before taxes 10,206   8,489     5,447     1,717    20.2% 3,042     55.8% 14.3% 14.3% 11.7%
Provision for income taxes 3,705     3,168     1,987     537       17.0% 1,181     59.4% 5.2% 5.3% 4.3%
Net income 6,501     5,321     3,460     1,180    22.2% 1,861     53.8% 9.1% 9.0% 7.4%

Year Ended
December 31, Incr (decr)

2003 - 2002
% of Sales

2002 - 2001
Incr (decr)

Comparative Statement of Income Data

December 31, 2003 December 31, 2002 December 31, 2001

Knee Implants 41,273$  57.9% 33,576$  56.6% 28,214$  60.5%
Hip Implants 14,904    20.9% 14,287    24.1% 10,433    22.4%
Tissue Services 9,685 13.6% 7,243 12.2% 5,252 11.3%
Other Products 5,393 7.6% 4,196 7.1% 2,700 5.8%
Total 71,255$  100.0% 59,302$ 100.0% 46,599$ 100.0%

Sales Revenue by Product Line
(dollars in thousands)

Year Ended
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During 2002, net sales revenue increased 27% from 2001, as the Company experienced sales growth in all 

of its major product lines.  Worldwide sales of knee implant products increased 19% in 2002, as compared to 2001, 
while worldwide sales of hip implant products increased 37% during the same period.  The growth in hip implant sales 
was fueled by the Company’s AcuMatch® M-Series modular hip system and the addition of the Link Orthopaedics hip 
products line in the United States, which contributed a growth rate of 42% from 2001.  Revenue from tissue services 
increased 38% in 2002 from 2001 as the Company began to benefit from the settlement of its dispute with RTI and 
implementation of a newly expanded distribution agreement.  Sales of other product lines increased 55% during 2002 
when compared to 2001, as the Company realized incremental sales of the Link Orthopaedic products, including the 
Link S.T.A.R.TM ankle. 

 
Gross Profit  

  
The improvement in the gross profit margin to 67.6% in 2003 from 67.0% in 2002 was due to the benefits of 

lower cost internally manufactured components along with the increase in average sales prices.  The Company 
continued to expand the quantity of its joint replacement implant products it manufactures in its facility with the 
addition of a limited second shift and the recently completed expansion of its production facility.  Looking forward, the 
Company expects to continue to increase the percentage of components manufactured internally by ramping up 
capacity with capital acquisitions and additional personnel.  This increased production strategy is expected to 
increase the gross profit margin during 2004 in the range of 50 to 75 basis points.   

 
The gross profit margin increase to 67.0% in 2002 from 65.1% in 2001 was also attributable to improved 

manufacturing efficiencies achieved through internal manufacturing processes and realization of one-time net 
revenue of approximately $1.1 million on licensed tissue services distributed by RTI as part of the arbitration 
settlement agreement.  

 
Operating Expenses 

 
Sales and marketing expenses increased 23% in 2003 from 2002, primarily as a result of increases in 

variable selling costs associated with sales growth, such as commissions paid to the Company’s independent agents 
for servicing surgeon and hospital accounts.  In addition to increases in variable expenses, the Company incurred 
expenses in connection with its collaboration with the Hospital for Special Surgery in New York City to host a 
continuing education conference for surgeons to address the challenges for improving the outcome for their patients 
with total joint arthroplasty (joint replacement). The 36% increase in sales and marketing expenses experienced in 
2002 from 2001 was primarily attributable to increases in variable selling costs, marketing initiatives in the area of 
targeted market development campaigns, distribution network expansion efforts and the commencement of 
distribution of the Link Orthopaedics’ products in March 2002.  The Company expects that sales and marketing 
expenses will remain in the range of 29% to 30% as a percentage of sales in 2004 as the Company continues many 
of its marketing programs. 

 
The 23% increase in general and administrative expenses in 2003 from 2002 was primarily attributable to 

increases in the Company’s allowance for uncollectible accounts receivable, which increased 65%, as the Company 
implemented a more stringent collection policy and increases in product liability costs, which increased 124%.  In 
2004, the Company expects general and administrative expenses in the range of 9% to 10% of net sales, slightly 
lower than the prior three years, as comparative growth rates in product liability insurance and costs are anticipated to 
be lower.  General and administrative expenses increased 28% in 2002 from 2001 primarily as a result of significant 
comparative increases in product liability insurance premiums over 2001 and costs associated with the initiation of 
distribution of the Link Orthopaedics products. 

 
Research and development expenses increased 34% in 2003 from the prior year due to the Company’s 

continuing development efforts to bring new and advanced products to market.  The Company’s primary development 
efforts have focused on product line expansion of its OpteTrak® knee system to include asymmetric (left and right) 
components, a new press fit hip stem system, a total shoulder system, and several advanced biologic based 
materials.  Looking ahead, the Company expects similar increases in research and development expenses in 2004 to 
support the active projects in the pipeline for its knee, hip, and shoulder systems, biologics and enhanced bearing 
surfaces technology.  During 2002, research and development expenditures increased 27% from 2001 as a result of 
the efforts on new product technologies, product line extensions on the Company’s AcuMatch® integrated hip systems 
and clinical outcomes research.   

 
Depreciation and amortization expenses increased 19% in 2003 when compared to 2002, as the Company 

invested $10.8 million in capital, including $2.6 million to expand its facility, $1.0 million to purchase manufacturing 
equipment and $3.0 million in surgical instrumentation.  Capital expenditures in 2004 are anticipated to range from $7 
million to $8 million to support new product launches and increased manufacturing capacity.  In 2002, depreciation 
and amortization increased 12% from 2001, primarily from the acquisition of $3.2 million in surgical instrumentation. 
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During 2003, royalty expenses increased 16% from 2002, primarily due to the strong sales growth in the 
Company’s knee implant products.  For 2004, royalty expenses are anticipated to be consistent with the prior year of 
2003, as a percentage of sales.  The increase of 11% in 2002 from 2001 was also driven by strong growth in sales of 
knee implant products.  As a percentage of sales, royalty expenses were relatively unchanged from 2003 and 2002, 
but were lower than 2001 levels as a result of the expiration of certain royalty agreements on the Company’s  knee 
implant products. 

 
Income from Operations 

 
Income from operations increased 15% in 2003 from 2002, as growth in operating expenses outpaced sales 

growth.  Looking forward, the Company anticipates growth in sales and gross profit margin, coupled with lower growth 
in operating expenses, to result in income from operations in the range of 13% to 15% of total net sales.  The 
increase in income from operations in 2002 of 39% from 2001 resulted from strong sales growth, as well as 
production cost improvements. 

 
Other Income and Expenses 

 
 Other income, net of other expenses, increased 212% primarily as a result of the final litigation settlement 
payments from RTI of $1.0 million.  Due to its minority investment in Altiva Corporation, the Company expects other 
income, net of other expenses, for 2004 to be a net expense approximately equal to 1% of total net sales.   In 2002, 
other income, due to the receipt of the initial litigation settlement payments received from RTI of $438,000, net of legal 
costs of $62,000, represented a decrease of 142% from a net expense in 2001. 
 
Net Income 
 

Income before provision for income taxes increased 20% in 2003 from 2002.  The effective income tax rate 
for 2003 was 36.3%, as compared to 37.3% in 2002, as the Company realized the tax benefit of strong international 
sales growth, coupled with domestic sales growth in lower taxed states.  In 2004, the Company expects an effective 
tax rate of approximately 37%.  In contrast, the 37.3% effective tax rate in 2002 as compared to 36.5% in 2001, was 
the result of strong domestic sales growth, as a percentage of total sales, and reduction in the tax benefit of 
international sales.  

 
As a result of the foregoing, the Company realized an increase in net income of 22% in 2003, representing 

9.1% of sales and diluted earnings per share of $.57, as compared to 9.0% of sales and diluted earnings per share of 
$.48 in 2002.  The 2002 net income increased 54% from 2001, which was 7.4% of net sales and diluted earnings per 
share of $.32. 
 
Liquidity and Capital Resources 
 
 Historically, the Company has financed its operations through a combination of traditional, commercial debt 
financing, sales of equity securities and cash flows from its operating activities.  At December 31, 2003, the Company 
had working capital of $33.6 million, an increase of 9% from $30.9 million at the end of 2002.  Working capital 
increased primarily as a result of the Company’s investment in inventory to support implant product line expansion 
and increased distribution of tissue services.  The Company anticipates similar increases in inventory during 2004 as 
occurred in 2003 as it continues its efforts to expand its business through broader product offerings.  The Company 
projects that cash flows from its operating activities and borrowing under its existing line of credit will be sufficient to 
meet is commitments and cash requirements in the following twelve months.  
 
Operating Activities 
 

Operating activities continued to provide net cash during 2003; however, the $8.4 million total for the year 
was a decrease of 3% from the $8.6 million of cash provided by operating activities during 2002, primarily as a result 
of the Company’s increased inventory balances.  Looking forward, the Company anticipates the investment in 
inventory to continue, with expected inventory balances at the end of 2004 to be in the range of $28 million to $30 
million, dependent upon the completion of active product development projects.  Even though inventory balances 
increased, the Company’s inventory management efforts during the year resulted in average inventory turns of 1.03, 
up from .97 during 2002.  Inventory turns are anticipated to decrease slightly in the following twelve months as a 
result of the anticipated inventory build. 

 
As a result of the Company’s focus on account management efforts during 2003, total accounts receivable 

balances increased 7% from 2002, well below the net sales growth rate of 20%, contributing to the realization of 
positive cash flow from operating activities.  During 2003, the total days sales outstanding (DSO) ratio, based on 
average accounts receivable balances, decreased to 66 from 70 during 2002.  The Company expects increases in 
accounts receivable during 2004 to be consistent with sales growth, and is not anticipating any significant changes in 
its credit terms. 
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During 2003, the Company increased its reserve for product liability claims and its commitment to acquire 

patented product technology, as reflected in the increase in other liabilities.  While the timing and certainty of such 
claims is difficult to predict, the Company believes that its reserves are adequate and appropriately valued based on 
the best information available.  The Company does not anticipate that future claims will have a material effect on the 
Company’s cash flows. 

 
Investing Activities 
 
 Investing activities used $11.5 million in net cash during 2003 as the Company made significant investments 
in the expansion of its facility, surgical instrumentation, Altiva Corporation and the acquisition of patented product 
technologies.  In 2003, investment in surgical instrumentation used cash of $3.0 million, while the expansion of the 
facility used cash of $2.6 million, along with $1.0 million in manufacturing equipment associated with the project.  This 
use of cash represented an increase of 63% over 2002.  The investment was consistent with management’s growth 
strategy and necessary to build the infrastructure to support the Company’s business moving forward.  In 2004, 
investment in capital acquisitions is estimated to be in the range of $7 million to $8 million to support planned product 
introductions and manufacturing capacity increases. 

 
Financing Activities 
 
 During 2003, financing activities provided net cash of $3.0 million to the Company from borrowing under its 
commercial loans for the expansion and equipping of its current facility.  The facility expansion was completed in the 
second quarter of 2003; however, the equipping of the expanded manufacturing facility will continue into 2004 as the 
Company expects to invest between $1 million to $2 million in machinery to increase its internal manufacturing 
capacity.  Based on outstanding options that will vest and become exercisable in 2004, cash provided by the issuance 
of common stock upon the exercise of options is anticipated to be in the range of $500,000 to $1.0 million. 
 

The Company maintains a credit facility with Merrill Lynch Business Financial Services, Inc., which is 
secured by accounts receivable and inventory (“credit line”).  The credit line is limited to a maximum amount of $12 
million.  In addition to this maximum, the credit line may not exceed the lesser of 80% of the value of accounts 
receivable less than 90 days old, plus the lesser of 50% of the value of inventory (excluding raw materials and work-
in-process inventory) and 25% of inventory on consignment.  The credit line expires June 30, 2004.  The Company is 
currently reviewing a renewal of this line and expects to either renew or secure a similar line of credit facility.  At 
December 31, 2003, the interest rate on the line of credit was 3.12%; however, there were no amounts outstanding 
under the line of credit. In 1998, the Company entered into an industrial revenue bond financing secured by a letter of 
credit with a local lending institution for construction of the Company’s current facility.  The balance due under the 
bond as of December 31, 2003 was $2.7 million and bears, as of that date, a variable rate of interest equal to 1.3%. 

 
In November 2002, the Company entered into a long-term commercial construction loan of up to $4.2 million, 

bearing interest at a rate equal to one month LIBOR plus 1.5%, with a local lending institution, secured by an existing 
letter of credit, to fund the recently completed expansion of its corporate facility.  At December 31, 2003, there was 
$4.0 million outstanding under this loan, representing the fully funded amount, including the final draw.  During 
February 2003, the Company entered into an additional long-term loan of up to $1.5 million, bearing interest at a rate 
of one month LIBOR plus 1.75% with a minimum rate equal to 3.5%, with a local lending institution for purposes of 
acquiring office and manufacturing equipment for its facility expansion.  At December 31, 2003, $404,000 was 
outstanding under this loan and bears a variable rate of interest equal to 3.5%. 

 
 On October 30, 2003, the Company acquired for $1 million a 16.7% minority interest in Altiva Corporation.  
As part of the agreement under which the Company purchased this minority interest, the Company has committed to 
make loans available to Altiva in an amount of up to $5 million for a period of five years, the proceeds of which are to 
be used for the acquisition of various spine and spine-related product lines.  These loans will be convertible into 
shares of the capital stock of Altiva, and in the event that the Company loans the full $5 million commitment, upon 
exercise of all outstanding balances under the loans, the Company will own a 54.5% interest in Altiva.  In 2004, the 
Company expects to fund between $2 million to $4 million of loans in connection with this agreement, dependent 
upon the product line and technology acquisition opportunities available to Altiva.  In addition, the Company has 
committed to provide Altiva with, or guarantee on behalf of Altiva, a working capital credit line in an amount up to $6 
million, which would be collateralized by Altiva’s receivables and inventory.   The Company, Altiva, all other holders of 
Altiva’s preferred stock and certain officers of Altiva have also entered into a stockholders agreement under the terms 
of which the Company was granted an option (the “Buyout Option”), exercisable any time between October 29, 2005 
and October 28, 2008, to purchase all of the outstanding shares of Altiva’s common stock, preferred stock and 
securities that are convertible into common stock or preferred stock, or all or substantially all of the assets of Altiva.  
The purchase price payable under the Buyout Option will be based on a valuation of Altiva that is obtained by 
reference to a multiple which is indexed to the price of the Company’s common stock and multiplied by Altiva’s trailing 
twelve months revenue at the time the Buyout Option is exercised.  The valuation of Altiva used to compute the 
purchase price of the Buyout Option may not be less than $25 million. 
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The Company’s credit facility and other loans contain customary affirmative and negative covenants 
including certain financial covenants with respect to the Company’s consolidated net worth, interest and debt 
coverage ratios and limits on capital expenditures and dividends in addition to other restrictions.  The Company was 
in compliance with such covenants at December 31, 2003, and anticipates that it will remain in compliance with these 
covenants during the following twelve months. 
 
Contractual Obligations and Commercial Commitments 
 
 The following table indicates the Company’s contractual obligations at December 31, 2003 (in thousands): 
 

 At December 31, 2003, the Company did not have any off-balance-sheet financing arrangements or any 
unconsolidated, special purpose entities. 
 
Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates 
 
 Management’s discussion and analysis of its financial condition and results of operations are based on the 
Company’s financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America.  The preparation of these financial statements requires management to 
make estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses and 
related disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities.  The Company’s significant accounting policies are discussed in 
Note 2 of Notes to Financial Statements included in this report.  In management’s opinion, the Company’s critical 
accounting policies include allowance for doubtful accounts, excess and obsolete inventories, intangible assets, and 
accrued liabilities. 
 
 Allowance for Doubtful Accounts- The Company maintains an allowance for doubtful accounts to estimate 
the losses due to the inability to collect required payment from our customers for products and services rendered.   
Should the financial condition of our customers deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their ability to pay, additional 
allowances may be required which would affect the Company’s future operating results due to increased expenses for 
the resulting uncollectible bad debt. 
 
 Excess and Obsolete Inventories- In the orthopaedic device industry, significant amounts of consigned 
inventory are typically utilized to meet the product needs of medical care providers.  Since human anatomy differs, a 
wide variety of size options is necessary to meet the varying needs of patients undergoing musculoskeletal 
procedures.  Although larger and smaller sizes may be infrequently used, inventories of all sizes must be available to 
meet the widest array of patient needs.  In addition to large inventory requirements, the orthopaedic device industry is 
highly competitive with new products, raw materials and technologies being introduced continually, which may make 
obsolete existing product inventories.  The Company makes estimates concerning the future use of these products 
and calculates a provision for excess and obsolete inventories.  If the actual product life cycles, demand or general 
market conditions are less favorable than those projected by management, additional inventory write-downs may be 
required which would affect future operating results due to increased costs from the resulting adjustment. 
 
 Intangible Assets- In assessing the value of the Company’s intangible assets, the Company must make 
assumptions regarding the estimated future cash flows, economic life and other factors to determine fair value of the 
respective assets.  If these estimates or assumptions change in the future, the Company may be required to record 
an impairment charge for these assets in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 
142 “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets”.  The Company analyzes its intangible assets for impairment issues on an 
annual basis. 
 
 Accrued Liabilities- As a result of product liability and other claims, the Company establishes accruals for 
losses that are deemed to be probable and subject to reasonable estimate.  There are various claims, lawsuits, and 
disputes with third parties, as well as pending actions involving various allegations against the Company incident to 
the operation of its business, principally product liability cases. Should the outcome of any pending, threatened, or 
future litigation have an outcome unfavorable to the Company, it may affect future operating results due to the 
resulting increases in operating expenses associated with such litigation. 

 

Contractual Obligations Total 2004 2005-2006 2007-2008 Thereafter

Industrial Revenue Bond 2,700$       300$          500$         400$         1,500$        
Commercial construction loan 3,985         210            420           420           2,935          
Commercial equipment loan 404            80              160           160           4                 
Facility leases 175            70              105           -               -                  
Purchase obligations 9,939         8,939         1,000        -               -                  

17,203$    9,599$      2,185$     980$        4,439$        

Payments Due by Period
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Risk Factors 
 
Although it is not possible to predict or identify all risk factors inherent in the Company’s business, they may 

include those listed below, which should not be considered an exhaustive statement of all potential risks and 
uncertainties:  

 
 The Company is subject to extensive government regulation.  Failure to obtain government approvals and 

clearances for new products and/or modifications to existing products on a timely basis would likely have a 
material adverse effect on the business and financial results of the Company.  A significant recall of one or 
more of the Company’s products could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business and 
financial results.  The Company cannot provide assurance that such clearances will be granted or that 
review by government authority will not involve delays that could materially adversely effect the Company’s 
revenues and earnings.   

 The Company faces uncertainty relating to the availability of third-party reimbursement for its products.  The 
failure by physicians, hospitals and other users of the Company’s products to obtain sufficient 
reimbursement from health care payors for procedures in which the Company’s products are used or 
adverse changes in governmental and private payors' policies toward reimbursement for such procedures 
would have a material adverse effect on the Company’s revenues and earnings. 

 The Company is required to incur significant expenditures of resources in order to maintain relatively high 
levels of inventory.  As a result of the need to maintain substantial levels of inventory, the Company is 
subject to the risk of inventory obsolescence.  In the event that a substantial portion of the Company’s 
inventory becomes obsolete, it would have a material adverse effect on the Company’s earnings due to the 
resulting costs associated with the inventory write-down. 

 The Company conducts business in a highly competitive industry.  The orthopaedic implant industry is 
subject to competition in the following areas: product features and design, innovation, service, the ability to 
maintain new product flow, relationships with key orthopaedic surgeons and hospitals, strength of distribution 
network, and price.  In addition, the Company faces competition for regional sales representatives within the 
medical community.  The Company cannot provide assurance that it will be able to compete successfully.   

 The Company’s success is partially dependent upon its ability to successfully market new and improved 
products and the market acceptance of those products.  The failure of its products to gain market 
acceptance would be likely to have a material adverse effect on its revenues and earnings. The Company 
cannot provide assurance that new or improved products will gain market acceptance. 

 The Company is subject to federal anti-kickback laws and regulations.  These laws and regulations prohibit 
any knowing and willful offer, payment, solicitation or receipt of any form of remuneration, either directly or 
indirectly, in return for, or to induce: referral of an individual for a service or product for which payment may 
be made by Medicare, Medicaid or another government sponsored health care program, or purchasing, 
leasing, ordering or arranging for, or recommending the purchase, lease or order of, any service or product 
for which payment may be made by a government-sponsored health care program.  Those regulators may 
challenge or review the Company’s current or future activities under these laws, which would be costly and 
time consuming, and could increase operating costs, reduce revenues and cash flows.   

 The Company holds patents on specific designs and processes and relies on trade secrets and proprietary 
know-how.  The Company cannot provide assurance as to the breadth or degree of protection which existing 
or future patents, if any, may afford the Company, that those confidential or proprietary information 
agreements will not be breached, that the parties from whom the Company has licensed or otherwise 
acquired patent rights, proprietary rights and technology have full rights to those patent rights and 
technology, or that the Company’s trade secrets and proprietary know-how will not otherwise become known 
to or independently developed by competitors. 

 The Company must devote substantial resources to research and development.  The Company cannot 
provide assurance that it will be successful in developing competitive new products and/or improving existing 
products so that its products remain competitive and avoid obsolescence. 
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 The Company is subject to potential product liability risks, which are inherent in the design, marketing and 
sale of orthopaedic implants and surgical instrumentation.  The Company cannot provide assurance it will 
not face claims resulting in substantial liability for which the Company is not fully insured or that the 
Company will be able to maintain adequate levels of insurance on acceptable terms.  A partially or 
completely uninsured successful claim against the Company of sufficient magnitude could have a material 
adverse effect on the Company’s earnings and cash flows due the cost of defending itself against such a 
claim. 

Recent Accounting Pronouncements 
 
 See Note 2 of Notes to Financial Statements for information concerning recent accounting pronouncements. 
 
QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK 
 
 The Company is exposed to market risk from interest rates.  For its cash and cash equivalents, a change in 
interest rates effects the amount of interest income that can be earned.  For its debt instruments, changes in interest 
rates effect the amount of interest expense incurred. 
  
 The following table provides information about the Company’s financial instruments that are sensitive to 
changes in interest rates.  The amounts presented approximate the financial instruments’ fair market value as of 
December 31, 2003, and the weighted average interest rates are those experienced during the fiscal year ended 
December 31, 2003 (in thousands, except percentages): 

 
The Company invoices and receives payment from international distributors in U. S. dollars and is not 

subject to risk associated with international currency exchange rates on accounts receivable.  In connection with 
some distribution agreements, the Company is subject to risk associated with international currency exchange rates 
on purchases of inventory payable in Euros. The Company does not invest in international currency derivatives. The 
U.S. dollar is considered the primary currency for the Company, and transactions that are completed in an 
international currency are translated into U.S. dollars and recorded in the financial statements.  Translation gains or 
losses were not material in any of the periods presented and the Company does not believe it is currently exposed to 
any material risk of loss on this basis. 

2004 2005 2006 2007 Thereafter Total
Cash and cash equivalents

Overnight repurchase account
at variable interest rate $ 2,494       $ 2,494       

Weighted average interest rate 0.5%

Short-term money market
at variable interest rate $ 1,011       $ 1,011       

Weighted average interest rate 1.1%

Liabilities

Industrial Revenue Bond at
variable interest rate $ 300          $ 300          $ 200          $ 200          $ 1,700       $ 2,700       

Weighted average interest rate 1.2%

Commercial construction loan at
variable interest rate $ 210          $ 210          $ 210          $ 210          $ 3,145       $ 3,985       

Weighted average interest rate 2.7%

Commercial equipment loan at
variable interest rate $ 80 $ 80 $ 80 $ 80 $ 84 $ 404          

Weighted average interest rate 3.5%
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
 
 
To the Board of Directors and Shareholders  
  of Exactech, Inc. 
Gainesville, Florida 
 
We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of Exactech, Inc. (the "Company") as of December 
31, 2003 and 2002, and the related statements of income, changes in shareholders' equity, and cash 
flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2003.  These financial statements are 
the responsibility of the Company's management.  Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these 
financial statements based on our audits. 
 
We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America.  Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.  An audit includes examining, 
on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.  An audit 
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, 
as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.  We believe that our audits provide a 
reasonable basis for our opinion. 
 
In our opinion, such financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of 
the Company as of December 31, 2003 and 2002, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for 
each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2003 in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America.   

 
March 1, 2004 
 

Deloitte & Touche LLP 
Suite 2801 
One Independent Drive 
Jacksonville, FL 32202-5034 
USA 

Tel:   +1 904 665 1400 
Fax:  +1 904 665 1600 
www.deloitte.com 
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EXACTECH, INC.

BALANCE SHEETS
DECEMBER 31, 2003 AND 2002
(IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT SHARE AMOUNTS)

2003 2002
ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents 3,506$            3,651$            
Trade receivables (net of allowance of $782 and $602) 13,577            12,686            
Income taxes receivable 40                   -                      
Prepaid expenses and other assets, net 938                 750                 
Inventories 24,824            20,038            
Deferred tax assets 479                 364                 

Total current assets 43,364            37,489            

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT:
Land 865                 865                 
Machinery and equipment 8,720              7,389              
Surgical instruments 14,330            13,262            
Furniture and fixtures 1,635              820                 
Facilities 7,968              3,597              
Facilities expansion in progress -                      1,743              

Total property and equipment 33,518            27,676            
Accumulated depreciation (11,117)           (9,826)             

Net property and equipment 22,401            17,850            

OTHER ASSETS:
Product licenses and designs, net 309                 363                 
Deferred financing costs, net 138                 164                 
Other investments 1,062              86                   
Advances and deposits 428                 7                     
Patents and trademarks, net 2,636              807                 

Total other assets 4,573              1,427              
TOTAL ASSETS 70,338$          56,766$          

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES:

Accounts payable 5,272$            3,758$            
Income taxes payable -                      343                 
Current portion of long-term debt 590                 353                 
Commissions payable 1,540              1,150              
Royalties payable 526                 491                 
Other liabilities 1,814              450                 

Total current liabilities 9,742              6,545              

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES:
Deferred tax liabilities 2,790              1,882              
Long-term debt, net of current portion 6,499              4,313              

Total long-term liabilities 9,289              6,195              
Total liabilities 19,031            12,740            

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Notes 6 and 10)

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY:
Common stock, $.01 par value; 30,000,000 shares authorized,

11,018,779 and 10,901,780 shares issued and outstanding 110                 109                 
Additional paid-in capital 21,149            20,370            
Retained earnings 30,048            23,547            

Total shareholders' equity 51,307            44,026            
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 70,338$          56,766$          

See notes to financial statements
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EXACTECH, INC.

STATEMENTS OF INCOME
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003, 2002 AND 2001
(IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTS)

2003 2002 2001

NET SALES 71,255$         59,302$         46,599$         

COST OF GOODS SOLD 23,093           19,578           16,266           

Gross profit 48,162           39,724           30,333           

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Sales and marketing 21,600           17,616           12,977           
General and administrative 7,496             6,119             4,765             
Research and development 3,748             2,803             2,210             
Depreciation and amortization 3,516             2,954             2,650             
Royalties 2,282             1,963             1,762             

Total operating expenses 38,642           31,455           24,364           

INCOME FROM OPERATIONS 9,520             8,269             5,969             

OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE):
Interest income 30                  23                  36                  
Litigation settlement, net of costs 1,000             438                -                     
Interest expense (190)               (172)               (427)               
Foreign currency exchange loss (92)                 (59)                 -                     
Equity in net loss of other investments (62)                 (10)                 (131)               

Total other income (expense) 686                220                (522)               

INCOME BEFORE PROVISION FOR 
INCOME TAXES 10,206           8,489             5,447             

PROVISION FOR INCOME TAXES:
Current 2,912             3,129             1,747             
Deferred 793                39                  240                

Total provision for income taxes 3,705             3,168             1,987             

NET INCOME 6,501$           5,321$           3,460$           

BASIC EARNINGS
PER COMMON SHARE 0.59$             0.49$             0.33$             

DILUTED EARNINGS
PER COMMON SHARE 0.57$             0.48$             0.32$             

See notes to financial statements
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EXACTECH, INC.

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003, 2002 AND 2001
(IN THOUSANDS)

Additional Total
Common Stock Paid-In Retained Shareholders'

Shares Amount Capital Earnings Equity

Balance, December 31, 2000 10,204 102$         16,768$        14,766$        31,636$           

Issuance of common stock 2                16                 16                    
Exercise of stock options 274            3               1,045            1,048               
Exercise of warrants 144            1               814               815                  
Issuance of common stock
   under the Company's
   Employee Stock Purchase Plan 24              135               135                  
Compensation benefit of
   non-qualified stock options 9                   9                      
Tax benefit from exercise of
   stock options 261               261                  
Net income 3,460            3,460               

Balance, December 31, 2001 10,648 106           19,048          18,226          37,380             

Exercise of stock options 240            2               1,019            1,021               
Issuance of common stock
   under the Company's
   Employee Stock Purchase Plan 14              1               93                 94                    
Compensation benefit of
   non-qualified stock options 9                   9                      
Tax benefit from exercise of
   stock options 201               201                  
Net income 5,321            5,321               

Balance, December 31, 2002 10,902 109           20,370          23,547          44,026             

Exercise of stock options 98              1               393               394                  
Issuance of common stock
   under the Company's
   Employee Stock Purchase Plan 19              169               169                  
Compensation benefit of
   non-qualified stock options 197               197                  
Tax benefit from exercise of
   stock options 20                 20                    
Net income 6,501            6,501               

Balance, December 31, 2003 11,019       110$         21,149$        30,048$        51,307$           

See notes to financial statements
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EXACTECH, INC.

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003, 2002 AND 2001
(IN THOUSANDS)

2003 2002 2001
OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Net income 6,501$         5,321$         3,460$         
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net

cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 3,802           3,215           2,843           
Compensation benefit of non-qualified stock options 197              9                  9                  
Loss on disposal of equipment 335              289              79                
Foreign currency exchange loss 92                59                -                   
Equity in net loss of other investments 62                10                131              
Tax benefit from exercise of stock options 20                201              261              
Deferred income taxes 793              39                240              
Increase in trade receivables (891)             (2,183)          (1,447)          
Increase in inventories (4,786)          (440)             (200)             
Increase in prepaids and other assets (585)             (394)             (28)               
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 1,514           1,557           (1,081)          
(Decrease) increase in income taxes payable (383)             325              175              
Increase in other liabilities 1,697           607              429              

Net cash provided by operating activities 8,368           8,615           4,871           

INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of product licenses and designs -                   (150)             (25)               
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment 236              -                   12                
Purchases of property and equipment (8,553)          (6,440)          (3,615)          
Other investments (1,038)          (82)               (145)             
Cost of patents and trademarks (2,144)          (388)             (30)               

Net cash used in investing activities (11,499)        (7,060)          (3,803)          

FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Net payments on line of credit -                   (1,386)          (2,229)          
Principal payments on debt (353)             (300)             (300)             
Proceeds from commercial construction loan 2,372           1,666           -                   
Proceeds from commercial equipment loan 404              -                   -                   
Proceeds from issuance of common stock 563              1,115           2,014           

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 2,986           1,095           (515)             

NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (145)             2,650           553              

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 3,651           1,001           448              

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR 3,506$         3,651$         1,001$         

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION:
Cash paid during the year for:

Interest 124$            105$            331$            
Income taxes 3,251           2,804           1,466           

See notes to financial statements
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EXACTECH, INC. 
 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003, 2002 AND 2001      
 
1. ORGANIZATION 
 

Exactech, Inc. designs, manufactures, markets and distributes orthopaedic implant devices including knee, 
hip and ankle joint replacement systems, bone allograft materials, surgical instrumentation, and bone 
cement and accessories, primarily used by medical specialists for musculoskeletal surgical procedures. The 
Company is headquartered in Gainesville, Florida with its principal market in the United States; however, the 
Company distributes its products in over twenty-four international markets through a network of independent 
distributors and in China through its joint venture. 
 
In 2003, the Company acquired a 16.7% minority interest in Altiva Corporation, an early stage company 
building an asset portfolio through the acquisition of existing spinal products and systems as well as 
acquiring broad distribution rights to other existing spinal technologies, for an investment of $1 million.  The 
Company accounts for its investment in Altiva utilizing the equity method. 

 
2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 

Cash and Cash Equivalents- Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on deposit in financial institutions, 
including a money market account, institutional money funds, overnight repurchase agreements and other 
short-term investments with a maturity of 90 days or less at the time of purchase. 

 
Concentration of Credit Risk- The Company's accounts receivable consist primarily of amounts due from 
hospitals. Amounts due from international distributors carry longer payment terms than domestic customers, 
typically due in 120 days.  The Company performs credit evaluations on its customers and generally does 
not require collateral.  The Company invoices sales to international distributors in U.S. dollars and is not 
subject to currency exchange rate risk on accounts receivable. 
 
Financial Instruments- The Company’s financial instruments include cash and cash equivalents, trade 
receivables and debt.  The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents and trade receivables 
approximate fair value due to their short maturities.  The carrying amount of debt approximates fair value 
due to the variable rate associated with the debt.  

 
Inventories- Inventories are valued at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out method) or market and include 
implants provided to customers and agents.  The Company provides significant loaned implant inventory to 
non-distributor customers.  The Company provides an adjustment to inventory based on excess and 
obsolete inventory.  This impairment adjustment establishes a new cost basis for such inventory and is not 
subsequently recovered through income.  The following table summarizes inventory classification as of 
December 31, (in thousands): 

 
Property and Equipment- Property and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. 
Depreciation expense is computed using the straight-line method over estimated useful lives of the related 
assets ranging from five to thirty-nine years. Depreciation expense for the years ended December 31, 2003, 
2002 and 2001 was $3,531,000, $3,096,000, and $2,721,000, respectively.  Maintenance and repairs are 
charged to expense.  Certain instruments utilized in the surgical implant procedures are loaned to customers 
and are amortized over an estimated useful life of seven years. 
 
Periodically, management reviews property and equipment for impairment whenever events or changes in 
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable.  Impairment is 
measured by comparing the carrying amount of the asset to the sum of expected future cash flows 
(undiscounted and without interest charges) resulting from use of the asset and its eventual disposition. 

2003 2002

Raw materials 1,618$                1,385$               
Work in process 263                     242                    
Finished goods 22,943                18,411               

24,824$              20,038$            
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Revenue Recognition- The Company provides inventories of its products to its United States sales 
agencies until sold or returned for use in marketing its products and filling customer orders.  In the case of 
sales through such sales agencies, sales revenues are generally recognized when the product or service is 
implanted. International distributors typically purchase product inventory and instruments from the Company 
for their use in marketing and filling customer orders.  Sales to such international distributors are recognized 
upon shipment of the product.  Estimated costs of returns and allowances on sales to international 
distributors are accrued at the time products are shipped. 

 
Product Licenses and Designs- Product licenses and designs of $631,000 are amortized on a straight-line 
basis over their estimated useful lives ranging from five to fifteen years and stated net of accumulated 
amortization of $322,000 and $268,000 at December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. 
 
Deferred Financing Costs- Deferred financing costs of $214,000 and $223,000 are stated net of 
accumulated amortization of $76,000 and $59,000 at December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. These 
costs are amortized to interest expense over the expected life of the underlying debt. 

 
Patents and Trademarks- Patents and trademarks of $3,179,000 and $1,176,000 are amortized on a 
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives ranging from five to seventeen years and stated net of 
accumulated amortization of $543,000 and $369,000 at December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. 
 
Income Taxes- Deferred income taxes are provided on temporary differences that arise from certain 
transactions being reported for financial statement purposes in different periods than for income tax 
purposes.  Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized using an asset and liability approach and are 
based on differences between financial statement and tax bases of assets and liabilities using presently 
enacted tax rates. 
 
Research and Development- Research and development costs are expensed in the period incurred. 

 
Earnings Per Share- Basic earnings per common share is calculated by dividing net income by the average 
number of common shares outstanding during the year.  Diluted earnings per common share is calculated by 
adjusting outstanding shares, assuming conversion of all potentially dilutive stock options. 
 
Estimates- The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that 
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the 
date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during each reporting 
period.  Actual results could differ from those estimates. 
 
Options and Stock Awards- The Company accounts for stock-based compensation utilizing the intrinsic 
value method per Accounting Principles Board Opinion (“APB”) No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to 
Employees”.  The Company’s 2003 Executive Incentive Compensation Plan provides for issuance of stock-
based compensation, including the grant of stock, stock appreciation rights, stock options, and other stock-
based compensation.  Under the plan, the exercise price of option awards equals the market price of the 
Company’s stock on the date of grant.  Option awards typically vest in equal increments over a five-year 
period starting on the first anniversary of the date of grant.  An option’s maximum term is ten years.  See 
Note 9 – Common Shareholders’ Equity for additional information regarding the Company’s stock option 
awards. 
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The following table provides an expanded reconciliation of earnings per share as reported and pro forma for 
the impact of stock-based compensation for each of the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001 (in 
thousands, except per share amounts):  
 

 
Reclassifications- Certain amounts in the 2001 and 2002 financial statements have been reclassified to 
conform to the 2003 presentation.  

 
New Accounting Standards- In June 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued 
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 143, “Accounting for Asset Retirement 
Obligations”. This statement requires entities to record the cost of any legal obligation for the retirement of 
tangible long-lived assets in the period in which it is incurred.  The Company adopted the standard effective 
January 1, 2003.  The adoption of SFAS 143 did not have a material effect on the Company’s financial 
condition, results of operations or cash flows. 
 
In July 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 146, “Accounting for Costs Associated with Disposal Activities”. 
Under SFAS 146, liabilities for costs associated with a plan to dispose of an asset or to exit a business 
activity must be recognized in the period in which the costs are incurred.   SFAS 146 is effective for disposal 
activities initiated after December 31, 2002.  The Company adopted the standard effective January 1, 2003.  
The adoption of SFAS 146 did not have a material effect on the Company’s financial condition, results of 
operations or cash flows.  
 
In November 2002, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation (“FIN”) No. 45, “Guarantor’s Accounting and 
Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others”.  This 
interpretation addresses the disclosures to be made by a guarantor in its interim and annual financial 
statements about its obligations under certain guarantees.  It also clarifies (for guarantees issued after 
January 1, 2003) that a guarantor is required to recognize, at the inception of a guarantee, a liability for the 
fair value of the obligations undertaken in issuing the guarantee.  At December 31, 2003, the Company had 
not entered into any guarantees.  The Company adopted the disclosure requirements of FIN 45 for the year 
ended December 31, 2002, and the recognition provisions effective January 1, 2003.  The adoption of this 
interpretation has not had a material effect on the Company’s financial condition, results of operations or 
cash flows. 
 
In January 2003, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 46 ("FIN 46"), Consolidation of Variable Interest 
Entities.  The Interpretation requires consolidation of entities with certain equity characteristics that are 
controlled through interests other than a majority of voting rights.  In December 2003, the FASB issued a 
revision to FIN 46 ("FIN 46R") to clarify and expand on accounting guidance for variable interest entities.  
The application of FIN 46R for companies with interests in a special purpose entity is required for fiscal years 
ending after December 15, 2003.  The Company does not have any unconsolidated variable interests that 
require consolidation under FIN 46R as of December 31, 2003, and as a result, does not anticipate any 
impact on the Company's financial condition, results of operations or cash flows upon adoption on January 1, 
2004. 
 

2003 2002 2001

Net income, as reported 6,501$     5,321$     3,460$     
Add:  Stock-based compensation expense

included in net income, net of tax 125          52            6              
Deduct: Total stock-based compensation

expense determined under fair value,
net of tax (626)        (493)        (631)        

Pro forma net income 6,000$    4,880$    2,835$     

Earnings per share- basic
As reported 0.59$       0.49$       0.33$       
Pro forma 0.55 0.45 0.27

Earnings per share- diluted
As reported 0.57$       0.48$       0.32$       
Pro forma 0.52 0.44 0.26
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In May 2003, the FASB issued SFAS No. 150, “Accounting for Certain Financial Instruments with 
Characteristics of both Liabilities and Equity”.  This statement establishes standards for classifying and 
measuring certain financial instruments with characteristics of both liabilities and equity.  The statement is 
effective for financial instruments entered into or modified after May 31, 2003, and otherwise is effective at 
the beginning of the first interim period beginning after June 15, 2003.  The Company adopted the standard 
effective July 1, 2003.  The adoption of this standard has not had a material effect on the Company’s 
financial condition, results of operations or cash flows. 
 
 

3. INCOME TAXES 
 

The provision for income taxes consists of the following (in thousands): 

 
A reconciliation between the amount of reported income tax provision and the amount computed at the 
statutory Federal income tax rate for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001 follows: 

 
The types of temporary differences and their related tax effects that give rise to deferred tax assets and 
liabilities at December 31, 2003, 2002, and 2001 are as follows (in thousands): 

 

 
During the year ended December 31, 1998, the Company generated a capital loss carryover of $294,000 
which was available to offset future taxable capital gains.  A valuation allowance was charged against this 
deferred tax asset for the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001, assuming none of the loss would be 
realized.  The Company did not achieve any benefit from the carryover before it expired December 31, 2003. 

 

Current: 2003 2002 2001
Federal 2,403$       2,504$       1,381$       
State 509            625            366            

Total current 2,912         3,129         1,747         

Deferred:
Federal 641            48              191            
State 152            (9)               49              

Total deferred 793            39              240            
Total provision 3,705$      3,168$      1,987$       

2003 2002 2001
Deferred tax liabilities:

Basis difference in property and equipment 2,726$       1,866$       1,748$       
Basis difference in patents 64              16              20              

Gross deferred tax liabilities 2,790         1,882         1,768         

Deferred tax assets:
Capital loss carryover -                 82              82              
Valuation allowance of capital loss carryover -                 (82)             (82)             
Accrued liabilities not currently deductible 479            364            289            

Gross deferred tax assets 479            364            289            
Net deferred tax liabilities 2,311$      1,518$      1,479$       

2003 2002 2001
Statutory Federal rate 34.0% 34.0% 34.0%
State income taxes (net of Federal income tax benefit) 4.3% 4.8% 5.0%
R&D credit -2.3% -2.4% -2.8%
Other 0.3% 0.9% 0.3%

36.3% 37.3% 36.5%
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4. DEBT 
 

Long-term debt consists of the following as of December 31, 2003 and 2002 (in thousands): 

 
The following is a schedule of debt maturities as of December 31, 2003 (in thousands): 

 
Industrial Revenue Bond Note Payable 
 
In November 1997, the Company entered into a $3,900,000 industrial revenue bond financing with the City 
of Gainesville, Florida (the “City”), pursuant to which the City issued its industrial revenue bonds and loaned 
the proceeds to the Company.  The bonds are secured by an irrevocable letter of credit issued by a bank.  
The financing agreement contains financial covenants that must be met on a continuing basis, including debt 
to equity ratio, current ratio, net worth amount and working capital amount.  The Company was in 
compliance with all such covenants at December 31, 2003. 
 
Commercial Construction Loan Payable 
 
In September 2002, the Company entered into a commercial construction loan with SunTrust Bank, 
providing for a loan to be used for the expansion of its existing headquarters facility in Gainesville, Florida. 
The loan is secured by an irrevocable letter of credit issued by SunTrust bank.  The financing agreement 
contains financial covenants that must be met on a continuing basis, including debt to equity ratio, current 
ratio, net worth amount and working capital amount.  The Company was in compliance with all such 
covenants at December 31, 2003.  Due to the variable nature of the note, the balance of the note payable 
approximates fair value. 
 
Commercial Equipment Loan Payable 
 

In February 2003, the Company entered into a commercial equipment loan with Compass Bank, 

2004 590$            
2005 590              
2006 490              
2007 490              
2008 490              
Thereafter 4,439           

7,089$         

2003 2002

Industrial Revenue Bond payable in annual
principal installments as follows:  $300 per year from
2003-2006; $200 per year from 2007-2013; $100 per
year from 2014-2017; monthly interest payments based on
adjustable rate as determined by the bonds remarketing
agent based on market rate fluctuations (1.30% as of
December 31, 2003); proceeds used to finance construction
of current facility 2,700$         3,000$         

Commercial construction loan payable in monthly principal
installments of $17.5, plus interest based on adjustable rate
as determined by one month LIBOR plus 1.5% (2.65% as of 
December 31, 2003); proceeds used to finance expansion of
current facility 3,985           1,666           

Commercial equipment loan payable in monthly principal
installments of $6.7, beginning January 2004, plus interest
based on adjustable rate as determined by one month LIBOR plus 1.75%
with a minimum floor of 3.5% (3.5% as of December 31, 2003);
proceeds used to finance equipment for facility expansion 404              -                   
    Total long-term debt 7,089           4,666           
    Less current portion (590)             (353)             

6,499$         4,313$        
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providing for a loan to be used for the purchase of in connection with the expansion of its existing 
headquarters facility in Gainesville, Florida. The loan is secured by the purchased equipment.  The financing 
agreement contains financial covenants that must be met on a continuing basis, including debt to equity 
ratio, current ratio, net worth amount, working capital amount and debt service coverage ratio.  The 
Company was in compliance with all such covenants at December 31, 2003.  Due to the variable nature of 
the note, the balance of the note payable approximates fair value. 
 
Line of Credit 
 
The Company maintains a credit facility with Merrill Lynch Business Financial Services, Inc., which is 
secured by accounts receivable and inventory.  The credit line is limited to the lesser of 80% of the value of 
accounts receivable less than 90 days old, plus the lesser of 50% of the value of inventory (excluding raw 
materials and work-in-process inventory) and 25% of inventory on consignment or $12,000,000.  The credit 
line expires June 30, 2004.  As of December 31, 2003, the interest rate on the line of credit was 3.12%; 
however, there were no amounts outstanding under the line of credit. 
 

5.  RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 
 

The Company has entered into a purchase agreement with Brighton Partners, Inc. to purchase raw 
materials, equipment and licenses used in the ongoing production of its products.  Some of the Company’s 
officers and directors own an interest in Brighton Partners, Inc.  Purchases associated with these 
agreements totaled $966,000, $713,000 and $668,000 in 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.  
 
The Company has entered into an oral consulting agreement with Albert Burstein, Ph.D., a director of the 
Company, to provide services regarding many facets of the orthopaedic industry including product design 
rationale, manufacturing and development techniques and product sales and marketing.  Pursuant to this 
agreement, the Company paid Dr. Burstein $165,000, $135,000 and $135,000 in 2003, 2002 and 2001, 
respectively, as compensation under the consulting agreement. 
 
The Company has entered into consulting agreements with certain of its executive officers, directors and 
principal shareholders in connection with product design which entitles them to royalty payments aggregating 
1% of the Company’s net sales of such products in the United States and less than 1% of the Company’s net 
sales of such products outside the United States.  During the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 
2001, the Company paid royalties aggregating $334,000, $274,000 and $242,000, respectively, pursuant to 
these consulting agreements. 
 

6. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 
 

Litigation- The Company had been a party to an arbitration proceeding with Regeneration Technologies, 
Inc. (“RTI”) with respect to its agreement with RTI for the distribution of a bone grafting material technology.  
On September 23, 2002, the Company settled the dispute with RTI and entered into a new distribution 
agreement as exclusive distributor for bone paste products processed by RTI for non-spinal musculoskeletal 
orthopaedic procedures.  The settlement agreement required RTI to pay the Company $1.5 million in 
damages in quarterly installments of $250,000 over a period of one and one-half years from the date of the 
agreement.  Such payments were received by the Company from the third quarter of 2002 through the fourth 
quarter of 2003.   

  
On December 16, 2002, Centerpulse Orthopedics, Inc. filed a lawsuit in the Civil Court in the Eighth Judicial 
Circuit, Alachua County, Florida, against the Company and one of the Company’s employees.  The 
complaint filed in this action seeks damages in an undisclosed amount alleging that the Company’s 
employee who is a former employee of Centerpulse, breached a noncompete and confidentiality agreement, 
and that the Company is liable for tortious interference with that agreement.  The Company has filed a 
response and intends to vigorously defend against all allegations made in the complaint.  The Company 
believes the suit is without merit; however, the Company is unable to predict the outcome of the litigation.  

 
There are various other claims, lawsuits, disputes with third parties and pending actions involving various 
allegations against the Company incident to the operation of its business, principally product liability cases.  
Each of these matters is subject to various uncertainties, and it is possible that some of these matters may 
be resolved unfavorably to the Company.  The Company cannot provide assurance it will not face claims 
resulting in substantial liability for which the Company is not fully insured or that the Company will be able to 
maintain adequate levels of insurance on acceptable terms.  A partially or completely uninsured successful 
claim against the Company of sufficient magnitude could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s 
earnings and cash flows due the cost of defending itself against such a claim.  The Company establishes 
accruals for losses that are deemed to be probable and subject to reasonable estimate. 
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The Company’s insurance policies covering product liability claims must be renewed annually.  Although the 
Company has been able to obtain insurance coverage concerning product liability claims at a cost and on 
other terms and conditions that are acceptable to the Company, the Company may not be able to procure 
acceptable policies in the future. 
 
Purchase Commitments – At December 31, 2003, the Company had outstanding commitments for the 
purchase of inventory and raw materials of $5,681,000, along with commitments to purchase $4,258,000 of 
capital equipment and product licenses.  At December 31, 2003, the Company had satisfied all of its 
outstanding purchase commitments associated with certain distribution agreements.  Purchases under the 
distribution agreements were $7,891,000, $1,769,000, and $246,000 in 2003, 2002, and 2001, respectively. 
 
Financing Commitments – The Company has committed to make loans available to Altiva in an amount of 
up to $5 million for a period of five years, the proceeds of which are to be used for the acquisition of various 
spine and spine-related product lines.  These loans will be convertible into shares of the capital stock of 
Altiva, and in the event that the Company loans the full $5 million commitment, upon exercise of all 
outstanding balances under the loans, the Company will own a 54.5% interest in Altiva.  In addition, the 
Company has committed to provide Altiva with, or guarantee on behalf of Altiva, a working capital credit line 
in an amount up to $6 million, which would be collateralized by Altiva’s receivables and inventory.   The 
Company, Altiva, all other holders of Altiva’s preferred stock and certain officers of Altiva have also entered 
into a stockholders agreement (the “Stockholders Agreement”) under the terms of which the Company was 
granted an option (the “Buyout Option”), exercisable any time between October 29, 2005 and October 28, 
2008, to purchase all of the outstanding shares of Altiva’s common stock, preferred stock and securities that 
are convertible into common stock or preferred stock, or all or substantially all of the assets of Altiva.  The 
purchase price payable under the Buyout Option will be based on a valuation of Altiva that is obtained by 
reference to a multiple which is indexed to the price of the Company’s common stock and multiplied by 
Altiva’s trailing twelve months revenue at the time the Buyout Option is exercised.  The valuation of Altiva 
used to compute the purchase price of the Buyout Option may not be less than $25 million. 
  

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION 
 

The Company reports segment information by its major product lines:  knee products, hip products, tissue 
services, and other products.  The “other products” segment includes minor sales categories, such as 
surgical instruments held for sale, bone cement, instrument rental fees, shipping charges, and other minor 
implant product lines like the Link S.T.A.R.TM ankle.  The Company evaluates the performance of its 
operating segments based on income from operations before taxes, interest income and expense, and 
nonrecurring items.  Intersegment sales and transfers are not significant.  The accounting policies of the 
reportable segments are the same as those described in Note 2. 
 
Total assets not identified with a specific segment (in thousands of dollars) were $34,286, $27,640 and 
$19,431 at December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.  Assets not identified with a specific segment 
include cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, refundable income taxes, prepaid expenses, land, 
facilities, office furniture and computer equipment, and other assets.  During each of the years ended 
December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, the Company invested (in thousands of dollars) $2,380, $3,547 and 
$1,128, respectively, on non-segment specific capital expenditures. 



 33

Summarized financial information concerning the Company’s reportable segments is shown in the following 
table (in thousands): 

Major Customer and International Operations 
 
During the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, approximately 3%, 4% and 4%, respectively, of 
the Company’s sales were derived from a major hospital customer.  During each of the years ended 
December 31, 2003, 2002, and 2001, the Company’s Spanish distributor accounted for approximately 8%, 
8% and 9%, respectively, of the Company’s sales.  Geographic distribution of the Company’s sales are 
summarized in the following table (in thousands): 
 

 
8. PENSION PLAN 
 

The Company currently sponsors a defined contribution 401(k) plan for its employees.  The Company 
provides matching contributions of 100% on the first 3% of salary deferral by employees.  The Company’s 
total contributions to this plan during 2003, 2002 and 2001 were $196,000, $151,000 and $117,000, 
respectively. 

 

Year ended December 31, 2003 2002 2001
Domestic sales revenue 58,360$           49,861$           38,208$           
Sales revenue from Spain 5,628             4,838             4,260              
Other international sales revenue 7,267               4,603               4,131               
   Total sales revenue 71,255$          59,302$          46,599$          

Knee Hip Tissue Other
Year ended December 31, Implants Implants Services Products Total

2003
Net Sales 41,273$   14,904$   9,685$      5,393$      71,255$     
Segment income (loss) from operations 7,196       1,678       1,145        (499)          9,520         
Total assets, net 18,935     13,486     2,485        1,146        36,052       
Capital expenditures 4,867       1,756       1,603        (47)            8,179         
Depreciation and amortization 1,907 1,058 283 268 3,516         

2002
Net Sales 33,576$   14,287$   7,243$      4,196$      59,302$     
Segment income (loss) from operations 4,794       2,271       1,503        (299)          8,269         
Total assets, net 14,917     11,610     1,168        1,431        29,126       
Capital expenditures 661          923          816           881           3,281         
Depreciation and amortization 1,603       992          193           166           2,954         

2001
Net Sales 28,214$   10,433$   5,252$      2,700$      46,599$     
Segment income (loss) from operations 3,606       1,566       917           (120)          5,969         
Total assets, net 15,570     10,848     927           702           28,047       
Capital expenditures (433)         3,105       (261)          106           2,517         
Depreciation and amortization 1,525       875          127           123           2,650         



 34

9. COMMON SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY  
 
Earnings Per Share: 
 
The following is a reconciliation of the numerators and denominators of the basic and diluted EPS 
computations for net income (in thousands, except per share amounts): 

 
For the year ended December 31, 2003, options to purchase 93,000 shares of common stock at prices 
ranging from $14.46 to $17.15 per share were outstanding but were not included in the computation of 
diluted EPS because the options’ exercise prices were greater than the average market price of the common 
shares.  For the year ended December 31, 2002, options to purchase 226,826 shares of common stock at a 
prices ranging from $9.08 to $11.30 per share were outstanding but were not included in the computation of 
diluted EPS because the options’ exercise prices were greater than the average market price of the common 
shares.  For the year ended December 31, 2001, options to purchase 232,076 shares of common stock at 
prices ranging from $7.31 to $9.41 per share were outstanding but were not included in the computation of 
diluted EPS because the options’ exercise prices were greater than the average market price of the common 
shares. 
 
Stock Options: 
 
A summary of the status of fixed stock option grants under the Company’s stock-based compensation plans 
as of December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, and changes during the years ending on those dates is presented 
below: 

 

2003 2002 2001
Weighted Avg Weighted Avg Weighted Avg

Options Exercise Price Options Exercise Price Options Exercise Price
Outstanding - January 1 1,007,600 6.24$             1,062,310 5.29$               1,273,022 4.78$             
Granted 150,000 13.75             206,000 8.41                 87,250 7.93               
Exercised (97,574) 4.04               (240,150) 3.94                 (273,082) 3.84               
Expired (37,000) 9.74               (20,560) 5.73                 (24,880) 4.56               
Outstanding - December 31 1,023,026 7.42             1,007,600 6.24               1,062,310 5.29             

Options exercisable
at year end 715,906 5.96$             753,875 5.59$               938,130 5.10$             

Weighted average fair value per share of
options granted during the year 11.00$           5.85$               6.27$             

2003 2002 2001
Income Shares Income Shares Income Shares
(Numer- (Denom- Per (Numer- (Denom- Per (Numer- (Denom- Per

ator) inator) Share ator) inator) Share ator) inator) Share

Net income 6,501$      5,321$      3,460$     

Basic EPS:
Net income 6,501$      10,975    $0.59 5,321$      10,777    $0.49 3,460$     10,477    $0.33

Effect of dilutive
securities:
   Stock options 496         315         349         
   Warrants -             -             11           

Diluted EPS:
Net income plus
assumed conversions 6,501$      11,471    $0.57 5,321$      11,092    $0.48 3,460$     10,837    $0.32
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The following table summarizes information about fixed stock options outstanding at December 31, 2003: 
 

Remaining non-exercisable options at December 31, 2003 become exercisable as follows: 

 
Outstanding options, consisting of ten-year incentive stock options, vest and become exercisable over a five-
year period from the date of grant.  The outstanding options expire ten years from the date of grant or upon 
retirement from the Company, and are contingent upon continued employment during the applicable ten-year 
period. 
 
The fair value of each option grant is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing 
model with the following weighted-average assumptions used for grants in 2003, 2002 and 2001, 
respectively:  dividend yield of 0, 0 and 0 percent, expected volatility of 66, 66 and 70 percent, risk-free 
interest rates of 4.2, 3.8 and 5.1 percent, and expected lives of 5, 5 and 5 years. 
 
Employee Stock Purchase Plan: 
 
The Company sponsors an Employee Stock Purchase Plan which allows participants to purchase shares of 
the Company’s common stock at a fifteen percent (15%) discount via payroll deduction.  This plan became 
effective July 1, 1999.  There are 250,000 shares reserved for issuance under the plan.  Employees 
participating in this plan purchased 19,429, 14,012 and 23,600 shares in the years ended December 31, 
2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. 
  
Stock-based Compensation Awards: 

 
The Company sponsors an Executive Incentive Compensation Plan (“2003 Plan”) which provides for the 
award of stock-based compensation, including options, stock appreciation rights, restricted stock and other 
stock-based incentive compensation awards to key employees, directors and independent agents and 
consultants.  The 2003 Plan is a comprehensive, consolidated incentive compensation plan that replaced all 
of the Company’s pre-existing stock plans.  The 2003 Plan was implemented upon shareholder approval at 
its Annual Meeting of Shareholders on May 2, 2003.  The maximum number of common shares issuable 
under the 2003 Plan is 3,000,000 shares.  During 2003, there were no stock-based compensation awards 
granted under the plan other than the options to purchase shares of the Company’s common stock, as 
discussed herein.  
 

Exercise Options Options Weighted Average
Price Range Outstanding Exercisable Remaining Life

$ 3.34 - 3.88 77,180       77,180     2.75
4.00 - 4.00 248,200     248,200   2.41
5.31 - 6.13 130,660     123,970   2.72
6.41 - 7.58 152,750     62,200     6.05
7.88 - 9.08 96,050       53,700     7.61
9.41 - 9.41 152,186     146,656   6.95
10.45 - 14.46 162,000     4,000       7.25
16.69 - 17.15 4,000         -               9.80
Total 1,023,026  715,906 4.98

2004 88,563
2005 80,863
2006 77,694
2007 40,800
2008 19,200

307,120
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10. OPERATING LEASES 
 

In June 2003, the Company renewed its operating lease for an approximately 9,500 square foot facility in the 
Northwood Commercial Park, Gainesville, Florida, which serves as the Company’s Distribution Center and 
warehouse.  The renewal term of the lease is for a period of three years, commencing August 1, 2003. 
 
In July 2003, the Company entered into an operating lease for an approximately 1,000 square foot office 
facility in Great Neck, New York, to serve as the Company’s operations office for the metropolitan New York 
and surrounding area.  The initial term of the lease is for a period of two and one half years, commencing 
October 1, 2003. 
 
Rent expense associated with operating leases was $58,000, $73,000 and $45,000 for the years ended 
December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. 
 
The following is a schedule, by year, of minimum payments due on all non-cancelable operating leases as of 
December 31, 2003 (in thousands): 
  

11. QUARTERLY RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (UNAUDITED) 
 

Following is a summary of the quarterly results of operations for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 
2002.  All dollar amounts are in thousands, except per share amounts: 

  
 

First Second Third Fourth Total

2003
Net sales 18,007$    17,761$    17,017$    18,470$    71,255$    
Gross profit 12,167      11,756      11,567      12,672      48,162      
Net income 1,578        1,633        1,536        1,754        6,501        
Basic EPS 0.14          0.15          0.14          0.16          0.59          
Diluted EPS 0.14          0.14          0.13          0.15          0.57          

2002
Net sales 13,755$    14,980$    14,523$    16,044$    59,302$    
Gross profit 8,865        10,203      9,863        10,793      39,724      
Net income 1,201        1,201        1,344        1,575        5,321        
Basic EPS 0.11          0.11          0.12          0.14          0.49          
Diluted EPS 0.11          0.11          0.12          0.14          0.48          

Quarter

Year Ending December 31,

2004 71$                
2005 72                  
2006 33                  

176$              
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